

Letter 1st
Rev. Lyman Abbott

No 5-

Subject
Department of Columbia

Letter to
Rev. Stephen Johnson

My dear Sir,
I have the honor to acknowledge
the receipt of your letter of the
10th inst. and in reply to inform
you that the same has been
forwarded to the proper
authorities for their consideration.
I am, Sir, very respectfully,
Your obedient servant,
J. B. Johnson

Secretary
Department of Columbia



Mr. J. M. Abbott

My dear Sir:

I have proposed to myself to make a personal inspection of the different posts or stations of troops within the limits of the Department of the Columbia. The first two visits were made to Fort Vancouver - situated on the Columbia river a few miles East & above the confluence of the Willamette. The next inspection was of the Fort near the mouth of the Columbia of Fort Stevens, situated at Point Adams on the left bank & at the mouth of the Columbia & just within the celebrated Columbia Bar - out of Fort Cape Disappointment ^{situated on a promontory} - apparently a continuation of the right bank of the great river. Returning from the latter post Saturday evening, the following Monday (Sept 11, 1871) with my Aid de Camp, Capt. J. A. Haden I set out for the posts of Walla Walla & Lapwai. At 5 A.M. I met the Captain on board the Steamer Oreata, (Colonel Perry of the Cavalry who has been sometimes here says that he noticed two peculiar rules of this part of the West, one is that every Steamer & other public conveyance starts at five o'clock A.M. - but another that every meal

The first of these is the
 fact that the
 government has
 been unable to
 secure the
 necessary
 funds to
 carry out
 its policy
 of
 maintaining
 the
 peace
 in
 the
 country.
 This is due
 to the
 fact that
 the
 government
 has
 been
 unable
 to
 secure
 the
 necessary
 funds
 to
 carry
 out
 its
 policy
 of
 maintaining
 the
 peace
 in
 the
 country.
 This is due
 to the
 fact that
 the
 government
 has
 been
 unable
 to
 secure
 the
 necessary
 funds
 to
 carry
 out
 its
 policy
 of
 maintaining
 the
 peace
 in
 the
 country.

of methods in four bits) ... At any rate the
Steamers Board Northwest has at this early hour
of 5. I have philosophized upon this after dinner.
~~My~~ The ~~four~~ Steamer has to bear
the ~~weight~~ and ~~it is~~ as everyone
who has been up or down this

701

river or who has read any of the accounts of the
early explorers of this rugged country - doing the
best possible using all the dispatch it
takes, at the least a day & a half to reach
the place for debarking ^{en route} to Walla Walla.

[#] ~~four~~ ~~Steamer~~ ~~the~~ ~~Steamer~~ ~~Quebec~~. is really a small Steamer
comparative with the ocean Steamers ^{which are} half above &
half below the water. She is built almost entirely
above water ~~with two decks~~ has a length of
180 feet & ~~about~~ 28 feet beam with side
molds & two decks. The lower deck carries the
freight but necessarily ^{much} ~~the~~ of the space is taken
up with the immense engine which such a
boat requires. The upper deck is covered. ~~The~~
The central part for nearly the entire length
is divided into three rooms ~~and~~ a large one
~~room~~ where the long tables are set three times a
day. ~~a small~~ ~~cafeteria~~ where the round ca-
table is located & another ~~room~~ a little longer
aft that constitutes the ladies ^{or Cabin} apartment.
~~part of the room~~ or sitting on both flanks

of Miss Minn's larger apartments are the state
rooms. The Captain's office & cabin are
side of the gentleman's cabin & the bar (an appendage -
to every steamer in this part of the world)
is opposite. Capt. Staden had gone on board
before me and though both were a little sleepy from
not having retired sufficiently early the night before for
such early rising but we must see the river, the river, the

Down the Willamette

settlements & whatever might present itself to the
eyes of a stranger. If you Portland down the Willamette
some ten or twelve miles inland the scenery is
always much the same. In fact there is little
variety when you enter the Columbia & proceed
down the Columbia to Astoria - a succession of
small openings ^{in the forests} when there are a landing & a
few buildings. ~~It does not seem like a wilderness.~~
The hills ^{to either} are not very high but generally steep &
covered with fir trees. You start back from
the river, see a city of long
standing. You pass ^{a mile from} ~~the river~~ ^{westward} into a ^{valley} ~~canon~~
road ~~very~~ deep down between the ridges, ^{which are} ~~even~~
thickly with ~~the~~ ^{the} trees, and this forest I am told
extends ^{in the same direction} with little interruption for nearly five miles.
We find lawns on the lower levels near the water
and on an occasion a island where the people
call the cottonwood - a tree that ^{grows frequently to a hundred feet} ~~is~~ and
resembles in the distance - our eastern elm that
is used so much in Washington & New York ~~state~~ ^{proper}.

Place Cover

for shade. ~~from~~ The Cotton wood of Arizona -
New Mexico presents a lighter green and ^{do} not
grow so large as the average. After entering the
Columbia the steamer heads up stream and soon
reaches the vicinity of Noveborac. The history of this
beautiful ~~interstate~~ & gently sloping shore seems
to be that it was first taken possession of by
the Hudson Bay Company. This company employed a ^{Catholic}
missionary ^{for the Indians} converted one of its depots into a church & spent
this missionary no charge of it. Subsequently the United
States set apart a ^{military} reservation. Congress passed
a law ^{for Oregon Territory} ~~reserving~~ ^{reserving} (640 acres)
missionary station (see act of Congress approved Aug. 11th 1848)
Under this law & in consequence of the mission
established to describe the Catholics have ~~claim~~ more
than the entire military reservation. do not
think Noveborac would strike one as remarkable
for ~~beauty~~ ^{beauty} of scenery, were it not located
where it is in such complete contrast with
all the country above & below & back
of it. It is in Washington Territory. & of course
to your left hand as you ascend the river. From
our standpoint outside a part of the fort
which the first feature that ^{is} notice is the beautiful
military ~~porch~~ ^{the (Indian quarters) ~~stands~~} in the distance with a row of
houses facing towards you. towards the east north.
There houses with two or three residences near them (
(the Ordinance depot & houses belonging) - To the west

[illegible]

5 nearly to the little town of Vancouver. In front
of the military parade & nearer you are the
gardens ~~and for~~ the officers, soldiers & quarters.
marked ~~definitely~~; then close down by the
shore the Quartermaster's building. The tower stretches
from the ~~main~~ river bank as far as the observation
& perhaps beyond. Behind the entire stretch of open
ground within a stone's throw of the military post is a
thick forest of evergreen trees that extends uninterruptedly
for miles beyond. To the Eastward ~~as far as the eye can see~~ up the
river the grass ~~land~~ ^{is spread out along a level stretch} growing narrower till in
~~the woods~~ ^{the woods} & the river meet again. The banks
rise higher, become rougher and except when the trees
have been felled for the use of the steamer show few
signs of the civilization ~~the river has been for a long time~~
~~near by~~ ^{at least} ~~the river~~ ^{the river}

Break fast

5
outward words. The polite colored steward has had the
long tables drawn out neatly covered with a snowy
cloth and made to sit with a nice hot breakfast.
The ~~Captain~~ ^{of the steamer} ~~is~~ ^{comes} to sit at his left hand as he takes
his seat facing forward at the ~~end~~ ^{lower} of the table. ~~Captain~~
~~Mr. Wolf~~ ^{Mr. Wolf} has slightly the accent of a German - but bears in
form, from stature & manner the appearance
of an American (I mean one of the Anglo Saxon
type, recognizable from Maine to San Francisco)
He has a deep manly voice - is six feet in height
with a face & frame hardened by exposure - a darkish
blue eye & hair quite black - apparently a man

I have been called for the use of the steam boat for
 the purpose of carrying out the provisions of the
 act in relation to the removal of the Indians from
 the reservation. The boat is now at the mouth of
 the river and will be ready to start at any time.
 I have also been called for the use of the steam
 boat for the purpose of carrying out the provisions
 of the act in relation to the removal of the
 Indians from the reservation. The boat is now at
 the mouth of the river and will be ready to start
 at any time.

The Captain's letter to the Secretary of the Navy, dated 18th Nov. 1864, is a very interesting document. It contains a full and complete account of the capture of the ship, and the fate of the crew. The Captain's letter is a very good example of the style of the time, and is well worth reading. It is a very good example of the style of the time, and is well worth reading.

of 500 yds. - ~~held~~ ^{the} from the boat ~~repeated~~ with
 the ~~main~~ ^{ship} ~~sign~~ of ~~Cape~~ ^{the} ~~sign~~. ~~Like~~ all these hardy
 frontiers ~~men~~ ^{men} ~~of~~ ^{of} ~~the~~ ^{the} ~~men~~ ^{men} & other vessels
 he has been in ~~position~~ ^{position} with all heights & distances
 & depths - with ^a ~~legend~~ ^{legend} or ~~history~~ ^{history} of every spot
 that ~~is~~ ^{is}. It was a great gratification to me to
 get a few moments conversation that the captain
 could ~~give~~ ^{afford} me during breakfast. "By we have a good
 trip we shall be at the lower Cascades by 11 A.M. -
 you will then pass by ~~as~~ ^{as} ~~far~~ ^{far} miles to the upper
 Cascades. Then by ~~train~~ ^{train} to the Dalles. Then some
 15 miles by ~~car~~ ^{car} to Celilo. where another ~~train~~ ^{train} will
 take ~~you~~ ^{you} ~~there~~ ^{there} to our place of debarkation."
 After breakfast, Capt. Haden having ~~held~~ ^{held} his ~~private~~ ^{private} ~~eyes~~ ^{eyes}
 open ~~forward~~ ^{forward} with me to observe - The ~~low~~ ^{low} ~~hilly~~ ^{hilly} ~~banks~~ ^{banks}
 have become mountains. The ~~whole~~ ^{general} aspect of
 the ~~landscape~~ ^{country} is like the highlands of the Hudson. Our
~~imaginations~~ ^{imaginations} ~~aided~~ ^{aided} us as we proceeded to make
 out the ~~likeness~~ ^{likeness} of "West Point" "Croquet" & ~~but~~ ^{but}
 I ~~thought~~ ^{thought} ~~it~~ ^{it} ~~was~~ ^{was} ~~all~~ ^{all} ~~the~~ ^{the} ~~same~~ ^{same} ~~as~~ ^{as} ~~the~~ ^{the} ~~likeness~~ ^{likeness}.

17. The Columbia
 and the Hudson

we ~~then~~ ^{we} ~~were~~ ^{were} ~~going~~ ^{going} ~~east~~ ^{east} ~~instead~~ ^{instead} ~~of~~ ^{of} ~~north~~ ^{north} - and that
 the water flows into the Pacific ~~not~~ ^{not} into the
 Atlantic. I ~~stood~~ ^{stood} up to the pilot house &
 found Capt. ~~Mo~~ ^{Mo} - spoke of the Hudson scenery
 & how like it this succession of mountain heights -
 "O yes - only here the distances are greater & the
 hills are higher." I would not have thought so. ~~It~~ ^{It} ~~was~~ ^{was} ~~not~~ ^{not} ~~the~~ ^{the} ~~water~~ ^{water} ~~line~~ ^{line} - ~~that~~ ^{that} ~~marks~~ ^{marks} ~~the~~ ^{the} ~~mile~~ ^{mile} ~~water~~ ^{water} - that

[illegible]

The first thing I noticed when I stepped
 out of the car was a warm blanket of
 sun on my face. The air was thick with
 the scent of pine and the distant
 hum of a lawnmower. I took a deep
 breath, feeling the cool grass under my
 feet. The world was so quiet, yet so
 full of life. I smiled, knowing I was
 exactly where I needed to be.

apparently two or three feet is ~~measured~~ ^{from} the present surface of the river. The
 water line was the line where the change
 of color from the air to the water ^{was} itself
 on the rocks. Notice that height we are approaching
 how high is it in your judgment? It
 is some fourteen or fifteen hundred feet.

"No it is 2000 feet. I was looking at the
 river here. How far to yonder shore? I thought
 100 yds. It is over three hundred yards - the banks
 are so high that it makes the river appear narrow
 than it is. After as on the Hudson looking ahead

the Columbia seems like closed up but on

approach the way ^{seems to} appear open. This is a good lesson
 life. Always the channel of escape from ruin ^{often} seems
 blocked ahead & the current runs hard against you -
 but on approach the way is open. - Now right ahead

~~the~~ ^{appears} a singular looking rock ^{lifting} its
 head from the river bed. - It looks like a

granite head out by hand. Afterward crumbling by
 exposure - the mountains show rise

far above it, but you notice it from its
 peculiar shape. - General, says the Captain

mult. This is "Castle rock" and is 850 feet above
 the Cascades.

surface of the water. The noticeable
 features in this region are the ~~rocks~~ ^{rocks}. I had
 supposed these to be some part of the main flowing

Castle Rock

၁၀၇

I have been thinking of you very much lately, and wondering how you are getting on. I hope you are well and happy. I have been very busy lately, but I have managed to find some time to write to you. I have been thinking of you very much lately, and wondering how you are getting on. I hope you are well and happy. I have been very busy lately, but I have managed to find some time to write to you.

Headling #



down the rocks, but found their stream ~~flowing~~ ⁷⁰⁷
down the steep & rocky banks cutting
narrow canyons of falling hundreds of
feet to the river below. ^{Slide}
I asked the Captain ^(standing near it there) concerning a sliding, &
conducted running from it up far into
the mountains. These canyons consist of
stone planks & - - - - - . Two side planks
flaring out. The arrangement is called "a slide"
sufficient water runs in this slide from some mountain stream
to cover the bottom planks. Wood is thrown in anywhere
along the slide, comes rapidly down to its mouth, and
jumps upon a floating platform or pool made to receive
it. Where this arrangement exists the country is too
rugged to be traversed by horses, oxen or mules.

H ~~At~~ ^{the} lower Cascades where the steamer from
Portland stops. You take a train of cars in waiting.
This takes you some five miles to the
port falls & turbulent portion of the river
to the landing denominated the "upper Cascades."
You pass around some old buildings ~~now~~
between the main road & the river presenting the
appearance regularly of a military camp or post.
This is called in order Port Cascades. The
~~port on the river.~~ ~~is called in order Port Cascades.~~ ~~The~~

over the rocks, but having there
found the ship & took it
having overboard of all the
people in the vessel. The
captain was killed & the
rest of the crew were
killed or taken prisoner.
The vessel was then
burnt & the crew
killed.

The vessel was then
burnt & the crew
killed.

The vessel was then
burnt & the crew
killed.

and union in our frontier have been
 for one so only in name - Notice
 however in two of her letters dated in 1856
 the place is denominated simply The Cascades -
 As these orders give a brief & suggestive history
 I will insert them. Wm. Smith of the Army,
 New York Nov. 13, 1857

x x x
 10. In March 1856 Capt. W. Kelly, Comp. H. 4th Regt.
 with 8 men gallantly defended a small black-house
 and protected all the public property at The Cascades
 Washington Territory, for two days against a
 body of fifty Indians. He had one man
 private J. Dooney, killed and two, Privates J. Boman
 and O. McManis, wounded. The latter since died of
 his wounds.

x x
 11. April 28th 1856 1st. Lieut. Colonel Edward J. Ste-
 phens, 9th Infantry, commanding Companies A, C,
 F. & G. same regiment and detachments of Company B. 1st
 Dragoons and Company D. 3rd Artillery, in all two
 hundred men - at The Cascades, W. T., repulsed
 the Indians in their attack of that place. The
 troops landed under fire, routing and dispersing the
 enemy at every point, capturing a large number
 of their mules and destroying all their property.
 2nd Lieutenant Philip H. Sheridan, 4th Infantry, is

Specially mentioned for his gallantry.

The Dalles - By another Steamer we proceed up the river -
the waters are no longer turbulent but quiet as
the river below the Cascades. The weather seems
here much warmer. There has been a half bridge

to the Dalles. A small town of some 1500 souls
promises of much promise - especially when
the grain in the vicinity gives a fair yield. Then
the great United States Mint was commenced a
half million of money spent in foundation
& materials, that had ~~been~~ ^{been} on point

as evidence of past enterprise & subsequent
disappointments. The Dalles ^{the town} contains many beautiful

^{of the Dalles} ruins of many structures - officers quarters - chimneys
of houses that have been destroyed by fire - is
located high up the steep away from the river
just west of the town. The elevation shows
everything ~~was~~ ^{is} removed from nature's roughness &
wildness. The extensive view westward of the
river the ^{overlooking} interspace of grass land & the
hills & mountains across the ~~the~~ Columbia
in Washington Territory. The State trees still
standing & the ruins of buildings which
indicate fine structures & careful arrangement
all show that the site of this Great Nation

[illegible]

was the only one who could see any
the officer who family, in the days when it
took months to cross the plains to the East, when
he was isolated ~~separated~~ from civilized society.
to depend on what they could gather about them
to relieve the monotony and loneliness of their
situation.

The Long Narrows.

[illegible]

\$ the Jackson
of which man-
the drifting
sand -

of the same faith

on sail to have

1111

of the River Indians
at the Rapids - giving

These river Indians are still very much
attached to their fishing grounds; When lately
Gen. Michels the surveying party were about to
begin the survey of the rapids with a view of
improving navigation - the Indians manifested
resistance - They feared it would eventually ^{lead} to the
loss of these waters, so abundant in fish. Giving
a wonderfully accurate description of these

Indians & their mode of gaining their
subsistence - ~~these~~ These have ~~been~~
become few & far between but wonderfully the
the same.

[Faint handwritten notes, possibly bleed-through from the reverse side.]

our only friend

Handwritten text on the reverse side of the page, likely bleed-through from the other side. The text is written in cursive and includes the words "The River", "for the", and "very much".

The body:
brown -
brown -
~~brown~~
dark brown
of skin & hair
with a reddish tint.

of the Columbia
about
Gales

Then is little change in the look
of the country after leaving Belito till
you reach Umatilla. The woods have
disappeared. The country is called
"rolling". It seems ^{in the distance} like numerous
mounds of sand rounded off by winds
& pulled over by water and this sound is the
sufficient soil to produce grass. At this
season the grass has a dried up, pale look
and you wonder how the ^{unimpaired} cattle can
keep in such good condition as you
find them. Occasionally we approach one of
the different rapids in the Columbia. Capt. Stump
a middle aged dark eyed full built, modest man
now master of the Steamer. Takes his place at
the wheel. He is at the roughest part of
the boiling & foaming water. The vessel
turns to the right and left at just the right point.
You hold your breath in suspense & glance into
the Capt's face for reassurance. How
nervous ^{he} ^{is} ^{never}! The dangerous
point is passed. The Steamer glides off the

There is little change in the
of the country since it was
up near the mountains. The
pills are the same. The
nothing. It seems like
back of every mountain. The
this house and has been
all the - some - some -
that day. The house is
and you would not know
keep a good record of
find them. - The
the different parts of the
a number of parts of the
now number of the house
the whole. The house
the house is the same
there is the right part
for the house is the same
the house is the same
the house is the same
the house is the same

of the
house

Captain's face disappears as he rushes his
 sent on deck to tell you stories of rougher
 times before than water can so well
 render. ^{of the} How necessary it is to have
 the right man in the right place - ~~perhaps~~
~~perhaps according to the old style - a~~
 Grant, Sherman or Thomas to fight a battle -
 a Cyprian Bismarck (who pumped the
 balls with a steam or the shells)
 or a Capt. Stump who handles his vessel
 in a boiling running whirling flound as
 easily as a Indian steers his canoe
 in smooth water. On board I have
 made the acquaintance of two important
 persons ^{in the British} ^{to meet} ^{him} ⁱⁿ ^{the} ^{British} ^{is} ^{the} ^{judge} ^{from} ^{Victoria}
 his name is ^{to meet} ^{him} ⁱⁿ ^{the} ^{British} ^{is} ^{the} ^{judge} ^{from} ^{Victoria}
 (climber by the way of Walla Walla. &
 He this is the successor of Mr. Heston
 in Congress, the Hon. J. D. Dow. I was
 much entertained by these acquaintances. The
 judge, a young man, is a type of English
 conservatism as true to his class as was
 Lord Clarendon in the time of Chas. 1st. Anti
 Republican, Anti democratic, Anti Liberal, loyal
 all through. A living man with all the old
 characteristics, the epitome of courtesy, civility
 & Christianity, frankly opposed to popular rights.

 The British
 Judge &
 Representative
 J. D. Dow.

I have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 11th inst. in relation to the proposed amendment to the Constitution of the State of New York. I have the honor to inform you that the same has been referred to the Committee on the Judiciary, and they are now considering the same. I have the honor to inform you that the same has been referred to the Committee on the Judiciary, and they are now considering the same.

to build
the
wall of

...the ... of ...
... the ... of ...
... the ... of ...

... the ... of ...
... the ... of ...
... the ... of ...

... the ... of ...
... the ... of ...
... the ... of ...

... the ... of ...
... the ... of ...
... the ... of ...

... the ... of ...
... the ... of ...
... the ... of ...

... the ... of ...
... the ... of ...
... the ... of ...

... the ... of ...
... the ... of ...
... the ... of ...

... the ... of ...
... the ... of ...
... the ... of ...

... the ... of ...
... the ... of ...
... the ... of ...

... the ... of ...
... the ... of ...
... the ... of ...

... the ... of ...
... the ... of ...
... the ... of ...

... the ... of ...
... the ... of ...
... the ... of ...

... the ... of ...
... the ... of ...
... the ... of ...

... the ... of ...
... the ... of ...
... the ... of ...

... the ... of ...
... the ... of ...
... the ... of ...